
How to Implement Projects
 Using Native American

 Set-Aside Grant Funds



Smith Lake Tank

1. What Does My 
Community Need?



2. What Can Be 
Funded?
• Water Wells

Alamo Well Drilling 



Alamo Treatment System 
Under Construction

• Water Treatment Plants



• Wastewater 
Treatment Plants 

& Collection Systems



• Water Distribution 
and Transmission Lines

Torreon Waterline 



• Water Storage Tanks



• And Just About Anything Else You Want!

(Just Kidding)



Ramah Tank Inspection

3. Evaluate Existing Facilities 
and Scope Project



4. Coordinate with IHS, BIA, and Other 
Agencies

• Make sure IHS doesn’t already have similar 
project in planning stages.
– Consider splitting project into IHS and outside-funded 

phases to increase SDS score and speed-up project.

• Ensure tribal utility is in agreement.

• Consult Tribe’s legal department/ counsel and 
contracting agency(ies).



5. Apply for Planning Funds

• “Up-front” expenses that need funding:
– Preliminary Engineering Report

– Environmental Assessment, Archaeology Clearance

– Permission to Survey, Right-of-Way

– Other planning expenses

• Sources of planning funds
– TIF

– USDA

– State appropriations

– Bridge loans

– Others?

• Who can apply for funding?  Must be at Tribal level, but Navajo 
Nation can apply on Chapters’ behalf (if not LGA-certified).



6. Procure Engineering Services
• Be sure to comply with funding agency’s regulations (USDA, 

State)
• Need to comply with Tribal regulations (NN Business 

Regulatory Department, Pueblo contracting dept, etc.)
• Process:

– Consult funder and tribal contracting regulatory body
– Appoint proposal review committee
– Submit RFP for review and approval
– Advertise RFP
– Receive proposals (must be present for deliveries)
– Committee opens proposals and scores them
– Submit scoring sheets to funder(s) and select first choice
– Send letters to proposers

• Any questions?  Ask your funder and tribal contracting 
agent!



7.  Contract for Engineering Services

• Tribe may negotiate fees with engineer.
• Use contract approved by funding agency

– NMED standard contract
– EJCDC for USDA funds
– NNDOJ-approved EJCDC contract for Navajo



San Felipe Wastewater Study Area

8. Stake Project in the Field and 
Get Archaeology, Environmental, 

and Legal Surveys



9. Prepare PER and Submit to USDA



Wash Crossing for the Torreon-Rincon Marquez 
Waterline Extension

10. Prepare Environmental Assessment and 
Submit to USDA at Same Time as PER



11. Apply for Project Funding

• Pueblos and Tribes apply directly.
• Chapters (if not LGA-certified) must apply 

through Navajo Nation (“The Navajo Nation 
on behalf of ______ Chapter”).
– Chapter is applicant; Nation is fiscal agent
– Grant agreements/ LOC must be approved by 

DOJ.
– Go through SAS process.
– IGR Committee must approve grant agreement



12. Letter of Conditions



13. Procure and Contract for 
Construction Services

• Receive Authorization to Advertise for Bids 
from USDA / Funder.

• Comply with USDA, State and Tribal 
procurement requirements.

• Must use construction contract approved 
by funder and by Tribe.

• Contract must be signed by Tribal 
executive, legal counsel and concurred by 
funder.



14. Pre-Construction Meeting

Torreon–Rincon Marquez



Eastern Navajo 
Water Pipeline

15. Construction!



Torreon–Rincon Marquez



Hard at Work in Alamo Chapter



Inside Lake Valley Water Hauling Station



Larry Juan of NTUA Tests Pressure on 
New Lake Valley Water Line



Lake Valley Water 
Hauling Station

16. Construction Closeout and Startup



Steve Guerro of Alamo Explains 
Chlorination Procedures

17. Operations and Maintenance



Steve Guerro of Alamo Explains Treatment



Alamo Water, Before and After Treatment

18. Enjoy that good water!



Haataalii Jasper Pablo Blesses 
New Lake Valley Water System

Lt. Governor Diane Denish blesses the 
Eastern Navajo Water Pipeline project with 

Whitehorse Lake haataalii Jake Chee.



Photo of Lake Valley Water System in the 
Gallup Independent





Questions?



For More Information, Contact:
Andrew Robertson, P.E.

Project Engineer/Manager
Souder, Miller & Associates

3451 Candelaria Road NE, Suite D
Albuquerque, NM 87107

(505) 299-0942
agr@soudermiller.com



For More Information, Contact:
Luralene

 
Tapahe, Assistant Attorney General

Economic / Community Development Unit
Department of Justice

The Navajo Nation
Tel: (928) 871-6933

Email: sqktapahe@yahoo.com
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